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INDEPEN DENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Innovsource Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Innovsource Services Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon

e Our opinion on the financial statements dbes not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section




Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Reporting on comparatives in case of first Ind AS financial statements

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019
and the related transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2018 included in these
financial statements, have been prepared after adjusting previously issued the financial
statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 to comply with Ind AS. The previously issued financial statement were audited by
the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2018 dated September
4, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Adjustments
made to the previously issued financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been
audited by us.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this the above matters
on the comparative financial information.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit on the financial statements
we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books of accounts.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31% March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related
to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

—p

Mukesh Jain
Partner

Membership No.108262
UDIN: 20108262AAAATW7519

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 25, 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Innovsource
Services Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India("ICAI")” These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Mukesh Jain

Partner
Membership No.108262
UDIN; 20108262AAAATW7519

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 25, 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

vi,

vii.

viii.

9%

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building and hence reporting under clause (i) (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

. The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the

Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provide guarantees

covered under the provisions of the section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act and
hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. There are no unclaimed deposits, to which
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 apply.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under clause (vi)
of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and
Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

b. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

c. There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loan to bank. The Company has not
issued any debentures.
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. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money

raised by way of bank overdraft have been applied by the Company during the year for
the purposes for which they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year except the misappropriation
of assets of the Customers by deputed employees of the Company at the customers
locations and the Company has paid/provided the compensation of Rs 40 lakhs to the
customers as per the term of the service contract for such misappropriation.

The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private company and hence the provision of Section 177 and second
proviso to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company. The Company has complied with the other provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, as regards the transactions with related
parties. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has disclosed the details of the related party transactions in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or directors of its holding company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

e

— l

Mukesh Jain

Partner

Membership No. 108262
UDIN: 20108262AAAATW7519

Place: MUMBAI
Date: September 25, 2020
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Innovsotisce Services Private Limited
Balance sheet at March 34, 2020

All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Mukesh Jain — -
Partner

Date : Sepiember 25th, 2020
Place: Mumgai

Dﬁ%ﬁﬂ

DIN - 00062858
.
\(s—‘@‘*'é
Amit Chitaie
Chief financial officer

Date : Septamber 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai

: Note No.| As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019 As at Al 1, 2018
Particulars
Assets
1 |Non-current assets
a. Property. plant and equipment 3 385.79 385.30 530.44
b. Right-of-use asset 26.5 1,027.4¢ 976.88 951.95
c. Goodwill 4.2 7,538.40 7,538.40 7,538.40
d. Other intangible assets 4 379.56 443.72 593.78
e. Financial assets
i. Others financial assets 5 3,742.20 2,367.69 246,63
' f. Deferred tax asset (net) 6 - 86.11 47.38
i ¢. Non-current tax assets (net) 5.784.84 3,590.81 1,246.27
Totai non-curient assets 18,858.25 15,388.91 11,154.85
2 |Current assets
a. Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 7 6,652.50 4,720.04 5,572.81
ii. Casnh and cach equivalents 8 5,386.86 547977 5,252.21
ii Other financial assets 5 3,047.29 5,365.95 1,506.44
b. Current tax assets (net) 1,275.89 - -
c. Other current assels 9 524,76 519.26 425.35
Total current assets 16,887.30 16,085.02 12,756.81
Total assets 35,745.55 7T 31,473.93 23,911.66
. Equity and liabilities
Equity
a. Equity share capital 10 11,533.00 11.533.00 10.00
b. Other eauity 1 2,200.46 984.58 11,659.58
Total Equity 13,733.46 12,517.58 11,669.68
Liabilities
1 |Non-current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
\. Borrowings 12 - 171.0C -
i. Lease Lability 25 558.18 478.10 599.17
b. Provision for gratuity 2,333.50 1,486.15 1279
c. Deferred tax liability (net) 6 92.44 - -
Total current liabilities 2,984.12 2,135.25 611.96
2 |Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 12 1,400.00 - -
ii. Trade payables 13 1,078.59 290.36 114.10
iil. Lease liability 25 520.92 553.61 381.31
iv. Other financial liabililies 14 9,999.40 10.644.50 7.555.30
b. Provision for compensated absence 1,394.26 865.99 53.93
' ¢. Other current liakilities 15 4,634.40 4,466.64 3,425.48
Total current liabiiities 19,027.97 1¢,821.10 11.€30.12
Tota! liabilities 22,012.09 18,:£6.35 12,242.08
Total Equity and Liabilities 35,745.55 31,473.93 23,911.66
The éccompanying notes arc integral part of Financial statements 1-32

W

Niley Pratik
Ciractor
DIN - 07692750

Monali Joshi
Company secretary




innovsource Services Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

In terms of our report aitached of even date
For Deloitte tHaskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

e

-

Mukesh Jain

Partner

Date : September 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai

Sudhakzst
jrector

3

e
alakrishnan

DIN - 00062956

Note | Forthe year ended | For the year ended
Particulars No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| |Revenue from operations 16 1,46,642.58 1,29,752.24
I} |Other Income 17 245,76 130.65
Il [Total Income (I + I1) 1,46,888.24 1,29,882.89
IV |Expenses
Employee benefits expense 18 1,40,726.73 1,24,056.48
Finance costs 19 117.44 145.38
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 1.018.36 1,026.21
Other expenses 21 2,793.08 3,530.38
Total expenses (IV) 1,44,655.61 1,28,758.45
V |Profit before tax (il - V) 2,232.73 1,124.44
Vi {Tax expenses 21
. Current tax - 152.00
Deferred tax 389.55 15.74
MAT credit entitlement
239.55 167.74
VIl {Profit for the year (V - VI} 1,843.18 $66.70
Vit {Other comprehensive incoime
lteins that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (838.30) (163.17)
- income tax relating to items that will not ba reclassified to profit or loss 211.00 54.47
iX |Total comprehensive income for the year (Vil + VIii) 1,215.88 848.00
Basic earnings per share (in ¥) 23 1.60 0.85
Diluted earnings per share (in ¥) 1.60 0.83
The accompanying notes are integral part of Financial staternents 1-32

nd on behalf of the Board of Directors of
sices Private Limited

W)s

Nilay Pratik
Director
DIN - 07692750

~
\<S® “W
Amit Chitale fAonali Joshi

Chief financizl otlicer Company secretary
Date : Seplember 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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innovsource Services Private Limited
Statement of Cashflows for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars For the year ended March 31, |For the year ended March
. 2020 31,2019
Cash flows froin operating activities
Profit for the year 2,232.73 1,124.44
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,018.36 1.026.21
Bad dabts and other receivables written off 33.20 -
Provision write back (28.42) -
Dividend on mutual funds - (26.74)
Provision for doubtful trade & other receivables - €09.25
interest received (209.40) (100.27)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7.94) (1.08)
Interest paid 117.44 145.38
3,155.97 2,777.29
Movements in working capital:
Increse/ (Decrease) in working capital :
Trade receivables (1,937.23) 243.40
Financials assets 1,180.90 (5.956.52)
GCther assets (5.50) (93.91)
Trade and other payables 788.63 176.26
Previsions 748.32 2,176.72
Financials liabilities (784.23) 2,956.04
‘herliabilities 167.73 1,041.18
v ash generatad from operations 3,314.59 3,320.45
Income taxes paid (5 680.92) (2,551.01)
Net cash generated by operating aciivilies {366.33) 769.45
Cash flows fror investing activities
Purchase of property, nlant and equipments including intangible assets (332.42) (177.83)
Sale of property, plant and equipmants 23.76 54.92
Dividend on investments LY - 26.74
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks (17.57) 85,16
Net cash (used in}/generated by investing activities (326.23) (11.01)
Cash flows from financing activities
Prcceeds/(repayment) from borrowing 1,400.00 171.00
Payment of lease liability (745.05) (698.20)
Interest paid (55.29) (3.69)
Net cash generated by financing activities 599.66 (530.59)
Netincrease in cash and cash equiv:ilents (32.90) 227.65
Cash and cash equivalents at the begirining of the year 5,476.76 5,252.21
’1 and} cash equivalonts at the end of the year 5,386.86 5,479.75
!

The accompanying notes are integral part of Finzncial statements

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Acceuntants

[
P S \LA

Mukesh Jain

Partner

Date . Septemrber 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai

1-32

Balc\knshnan

DIN - 00062956

\\&653@*

Amit Chitale

Chief financial officer

Date : Septamber 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai

/Forand on beh\lf of the Board of Directors of

\ me vsource S-chee Private Limited

Nilay Pratik
Cirector
DIN - 073932750

|

Monali Joshi
Company secretary




Kieyaoas Auedwo)
1ysor yeuop

x

06.¢69.0 - NIQ
10108110

A2ad AejIN

.N,S\

lequIng 9o8B|d

020z ‘igeg 1equisdeg « 81e()
80130 [BIOUBUY JOIYD
aje3iyo Ny

©5629000 - Nid

paWil] 9yeAlld S0k mm asindgaojuy
JO $1039241( 40 paeog su} u_ou yaq uo puw

IeQUINK (29B)d

0202 ‘Wigz 12qusidsg : 8jeQ
Jeuped

uier ysayny

s/_
SJUBUNOIIY PAIBUBRYD
dT1 Sil9S 3 SubiseH 1013 104

S1EP UBAS 0 Dayceje podal Jno Jo suus) u|

270027 91°002'2
81'Ev8L 8LEYS'L
(0£°229) (0g°229)
85°¥86 35'v86
0.°956 02966
{oLe01) (oL'301)

{coc2s‘LL)

(00°€2G°1})

0202 ‘LT Yo4ey 3B @ouejeg

129A 8Y) Jo} jl30id

ue|d sjjeUSG DaUYSP JO JUBWISINSEDLUDY
pouad 2y Buurip pensst aieys

6107 ‘LT Ud4By Je aoueley

Jz2ak sy} Jo} njod

ue|d sjyouaq FauULSD JO JUBIBINSESLLDY
pouad ay) Buunp penssi aieyg

powad ayy Buunp panss aleys

85°659°L1 85°659°L1 8102 ‘10 JUdy Je aduejeg
sBuiuiea paurejay srEnoRIEd
el snjdins 3 saAnlasey

Ainbo Ja0 4
00'cES’L) 000°0€°€S‘ 11 0202 ‘1€ LidiBy Je aduzjed
- - seaf sy Buunp |ejidso a1zys Aiinks ul sabuey)
00°€ES‘L) 000°0£°¢S°}) 6107 L€ yStep je souejeg
00°ees’LL 000'0£'25'LL J1eak ay) Buunp endes aieys Ainba ul sabueyd
cool 000°00°) 8102 ‘L0 judy e 20uEiEg
junowy S3IEYS JO "ON sigjnonued

jendes aieys Anb3 e

PAIEIS BSIMIBLRO SSAJUN SUMET Ll 2 848 SjUNOWwe Iy

0702 ‘1€ YoJepy pepus Jeak ay; Jo} Aunba wy seBueyd jo Juswejelg

‘ pajuET 3)BALL] SBDIAI9G BUNOSAOUY|




Ir‘movsource Services Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1 Corporate information

Innovsource Services Private Limited (the “Company” or “{SPL”) was incorporated on March 06, 2016 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) for providing staffing services. The Company is a subsidiary of FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
with effect from June 28, 2018. The registered office of the Company is located at A-3, Kailash Industrial Complex, Park Site, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai — 400079. The name of the ultimate holding company is Manpower Solutions Limited, Mauritus.

2 Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and measurement
a Statement of compliance

(iy Tne Belance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and the Statement cf Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Staternent of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020, summary of significant accounting policies
and other financial information (tegether referred as ' Ind AS Financisl Statements’) has been prepared under Indian Acccunting Standards ('Ind
AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

Compliance with Ind AS:

The Ind AS financial Information were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 24 September 2020.

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) (Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

bl The financial statements up to year ended March 31, 2019 were preparad in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act {“Indian GAAP” or “Previous GAAP").

Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first set of Ind.AS financial statements issued by the Company, hence are
covered by Ind AS 101, ‘First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’. The transition to Ind AS has kteen carried out from the accounting
principles generally accepted in India (‘indian GAAP), which is considered as the Previous GAAP, for the purposes of ind AS 101. In preparing
these financial statemeﬁﬁ; p Sinpany’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2018, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS.

b Current vs non-current classification:
All the assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non currznt.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reperting date: or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used tc sett'e a [abilty for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

_Liabilities:
fiability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
d) the Company doss not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the fiability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of
a liability that could, althe option of the counterparty, result in its settlernent by the issue of equity instruments Qo peat.affect its classification.

A

Operating cycle:
All assets and liabiiities have been classifizd as current or non-current as per tie Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set cut in
the Schedule Ili to ihe Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of sarvines and the time taken between acquisition of assets/inventories for
processing and thair realization in cesh and cash equivalents, the Compar:/ nas ascerlainad its operating cycle as twelve menths for the purpose
of the classification of assets and kabilties into current and nor-curent.

c Functional and presentation currency
The functiona! currency of the Company is indian Rupees (INR).

The presentation currency of the Gempany is Indian Rupees (iNR). Alt figures anpearicg in the financial statements are rounded to the nearest
lakhs, unless olherwise indicated. )
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2.1 Basis of plreparation and measurement (Continued)

d Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost convention except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
« Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability - Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

e Usc of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and axpenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on aii ongcing basis. Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

i. Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles; {Note 2.2(a))
ii. Impairment test of non-financial assets (Note 2.2(c))

iii. Recognition of deferred tax assets; (Note 2.2(1))

iv. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; (Note 2.2(f)

v. Impairment of financial assets (Note 2.2 (d))

vi. Measurement of defined benefit obligations; (Note 2.2(i))

f . Moeasurement of fair values

.Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an eslablished controi framework with respect to the measuremant of fair values (inciuding Level 3 fair values). The Company
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufiicient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing
{he use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the irputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observatle for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (uriobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a Yability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. then the fair vaiue
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowsast level input that is significant to the entire
measuremant.

The Ccmpany recognizes trancfers between levels of the fair vaive hierarchy at the end cf the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes
_ - Financial instruments (Note 30)

2.1’\3ignificant Accounting Policies

a) Property plant and equipment
Recognition and measurernent:

items of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an.item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refuniabie purchase taxes
(after deducting trade discounts and rebates), any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and
estmated costs ot dismantling and removing the item and res!oring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have gifferent useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate ilems (major
components) of proparty, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is inciuded in profit or loss when the itern is derecognized.
Subsequent expenaiture:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate orly if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized v/hen replaced. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the
statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which they are incurred.




b)

c)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, is provided under the straight-line method in the manner
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Act, except in the following case where the life is different than as indicated in Schedule li of the Act which is
based on the technical evaluation of useful life carried out by the managarment:

Economic Useful lL.ife

|Particulars Property, plant and equipment Other Property, plant
orovided under contracts & Equipment

Furniture and Fixtures 5years 3 years

FEquipments 3 years 5 years

Vehicles - 5 years

Leasehold improvement are depreciated over the tenure of lease term.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviawed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on a business combination is subsaquently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment lossas as on transition date.

Other intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition.at cost. The cost of intangible acsels acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost lecs accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding eligible development costs are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. .

Amortization
Goodwill is nct amortised and is tested for impairment annualiy.

Amorlization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assats using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and s
recognized in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for current and comgarative year aie as follows:

Right to uce trademark - 10 years
Software - 3 years

_Amoriisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whetrer there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

RSN 1 gu,g ar . .
The recoverable amount of an individual asset (or where applicable, that of cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs) is the higher
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Vaiue in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to tneir present value
using a pre-tax discsunt rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific, to the asset (or CGU).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount ci an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impainent losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and less.

An impairment loss in respact of gocdwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised
in prior periods, the Cornpany reviews at each reporting dale whether there is any indication that the loss has decreasad or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only
to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying ameunt that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairtnent loss had been recognised.

@/@k




2.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

d) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial instruments also include derivative contracts.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are initially recognized when the Company becornes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets
other than those measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent nmeasurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

» Amortized cost,

« Fair value through profit (FVTPL)

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortized cost :

A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payrents of principal and interest (SPPD on the principal

.amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequantly measured at amortised cost using the effectivs inlerest rate (CIR) mathod.

Fair value through profit and less (FVTPL').

All financia! assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value
through profit or loss with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest (basis EIR method) income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss within finance income/ finance costs separately from the other
gains/ losses arising from changes in the fair value.

Fair value through Other Comprehznsive Income (‘FVOCH)

Financial assets are measured at FVOCIH if both the following condilions are met:

The asset is held within a husiness model whose objective is achieved by both

- collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

- contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are SPPI on tha princioal amount sutstanding.

Aiter initial measurement. these asseis are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividerds, Inferest income under effective interest metnod,
foreign exchange gains and lesses and impairment losses are recognized in the siatement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive Income. -

.Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financisl asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

- (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- (&b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
On de-recognition, any gains cr losses on all debt instrurnznts (other than debt instruments rneasured al FVOCI) and equity instruments
(measured at FVTPL) are recoynized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FVOZCI
and that are accumulated in OCI are raclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on

the financial assets measured at amortized cost and dabt instrurents measured at FVOCI.

1 oss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each reporting

date. In respect of other financial assats, the loss allowance is measured at 12 month ECL. only if there is no significant deterioration in the credit
&risk since ‘nitial recognition of the asset ur asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the reporting dale.

Za
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Significaﬁt Accounting Pclicies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial [iabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a arty to the contractual provisions of the instrumant.
Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issus.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial liabilities.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value throuch Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial liability is classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if it is classified as held-for trading or is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilites at FVTPL are measured at fair vaiue and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in
statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost;

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classifizd as FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (“EIR") method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
amortization done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is dischargad or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financiat liabilties are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceabie legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simuitaneously.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet and cash flow statement includes cash at bank, cash. cheque, draft on hand and demand
deposits with an original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
utflow of resources embodying econontic benefits will be required to setile the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

. hese are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expacted future cash flows specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events tut thelr enstenr:e;a conﬂrmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one:or more uncertain future events not wholly within tha control of the Company.

A contingent asset is a poscible asset that arises frem past events and whose existencz will be confumed only hy the occurrence or non-
ccourrence of ane or more uncertain future events not witclly within the contiol of the enlity. Contingant ‘assets are not recogrized till the
realization of the incomr.e is virtually cartain. However the samea are disclosed i the financial statcments where a infiow of ecanomic benefit is
prokable.

L




2.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from staffing services in the segments of Workforce management, Operating asset
management and Tech services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over goods or service to a customer. The method for
recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the services rendered.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are rendered and revenue from the end of the last
invoicing to the reporting date is recognized as unbilled revenue.

Revenue from fixed-price, fixed time frame contracts, where the performar.ce obligations are satisfied overtime and where there is no uncertainty
as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty as to
measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expended have been
used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (referred to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are
classified as contract liabilities (referred to as income received in advance).

a) Workforce management:

*
Revenue from staffing services i.e. salary and incidental expenses of temporary associates alorig with the service charges are recognised in
accordance with the agreed terms as the related services are rendered.

Revenue from recruitment services are recognised when the candidate begins fuil time employment.

Other income
Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate which
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the EIR the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrurnent (for example, prepayments, extensions, call and similar options); expected credit losses are conigidered if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Dividend income

Dividends are reccgnised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which the Company's rignt to receive payment is established.

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex gratia including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be setiled wholly within twelve
_months after the end cf the period in which the employees render the related service are classified as short term employee benefits and are

'»ecognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss as the related service is provided.

L

“The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry fonward a portion of the unutilised accumulating
compensated absences. The Company records an obligation for corpensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services
that increases this entittement. The obligation is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an indegendent actuary at each balance sheet
date using projected unit credit method.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
resuit of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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' Annexure V - (Continued) °

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Company pays specified contributions to a separzte entity and has no
obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes contributicn to provident fund in accordance with Employaes Provident Fund and
Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State Insurance. Contrioution paid or payakle in respact of defined contiibution plan is
recognized as an expense in the year in which services are rendered by the employee.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Company's gratuity bensfil scheme is a defined benefit plar. Tha liability is recsgnised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the
present value of the dzfined benefitoblication at the balance sheat date less the fair value of plen assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognised acturial cain lusses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation are calculated at balance sheet date by an independen!
astuary using the projectad unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excludmng interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OClI).

Leases:
hAs a Lessee:

Transition:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporiing period beginning April 1, 2018 and applied the standard to its leases,
retrospeclively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Ctandard, recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2018 i.e. date of
transition tc Ind AS). The cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has been recognised as an acjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings as on April 1, 2018. The Company has adopted Ind AS 11€ using the modified retrospectve method for lransitioning.
Consequently, the Company recerded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrcwing rate
and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the stanaard had teen applied since the ccmmencement date of the lease, but discounted at
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rale at the date of initial appiication.

The Cempany assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A coatract is, or contains, a leasz if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
i. the contact involves the use of an idantified asset

ii. the Company has substantialty all of the economic benefits frorn use of the agset through the period of the lease and
iii. the Company haslglze rignt to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding leasa liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lesses.
except for shori-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets, For these leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expensrs on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more rezsrasertative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assat are consumed.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or {erminiate the lease nefore the end of the lease term. ROU zsse’s and lezse
liabilities wiciudes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will e exercised.

The lease lizhility is initially measured at amortized cost zt the presgnt vaiue of the lease payments that are nct paid at the ccmmencemient date,
discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if nct readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

« variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
« the amount expecled to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

« the exercise price of purchase ortions, if the lessee is reasonatly certain to exercise the options; and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the siatement of financial position. The lease liability is subsegquently measired by increasing
tire carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease [ability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying arrount to reflect the
lease payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liabiliy (and makes a corresponaing adjustment to the related night-oi-use asset;
whangver

« the lease ‘erm nas changed or there is a change in the assessment of exarcise of a purchase oplion, in which case the lease habilty is
renieasurad by dis:ounting the revised lzase payments using a revised discount rate, o ]

+ the lease payments charge duc ‘o changes in an index or rate or a chignge in expected payinert uncer a?ﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ%al vaiie, in which
cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease peyrients using ths ndial discount rate (unlegs fite ‘ease payments
change is due 10 a cr.ange in a floaling interest rate, in which case a revised ciscount rate is used).

+a lease contract is modifing and e lease modification is rol zocounted for as a separate lease, in whicn case the lease liability is remeasured by
discourting the revised lease payments using 2 revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets are presented 2s a separate line in the sictement of financial position. The right-of-use assels ar¢ initiaily recognized at
cest which comprises of the initizl measurement of the corresponding lease lighility, lease payments made at or pefore the commencement day
and any initial oirect costs less any Iease incentives. They aie subsequenily measured at cost less accumulated depresiation and impairment
losses. Whenever the Comipany incurs an obligation for costs to dismanile and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or
restere the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is reccgnised and measured. The costs
are included in the related rigit-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-uf-usz assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and uceful life of the underlying asset. If a lease trangfers ownersaip of
the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asser. The depreciation starts ot ths commencement date of the lease.




22  Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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Government Grants . 3
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensats. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated balance sheet and
transferred to profit or loss on a systemalic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or lesses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Company with no future 1elated costs are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they becoms receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measurcd as the difference batween
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

income-tax

Income tax expense fincome comprises current tax expense /income and deferred tax expense /income. It is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Inceme. In which case, the tax is also recognized directly
in cquity or other comprehensive income, respectively.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
recoverahle in respect of previous years. It is measured at the amount expacted to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the
applicable tax rates and tax laws.

. Current tax assets and liabilities are cffset only if, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amcunts; and
» intends sither to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and sellle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose
and the amount considered for tax purpose.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits wili be avaiiable against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferrea tax
asset to be utilized such reductions are reversed when it becomes probable that sufiicient taxable profits will be available.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expectes to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse. using 1ax rates enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The measurement of deferred lax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would foilow from the manner in which the Company
xpects, at the reporting dats, to reccver or settle the carrying amount of its aszets and liabllities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

i) the entity has a legelly enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilitizs; and
i) the deferred tax essets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxas lavied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.




2.2

m)

n)

o)

éigﬁificaht Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recogniticn in th2 functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date.

Exchange difierences arising on the setilement or translation of monatary items are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

DRividend

The Company recognizes a liability for 2ny dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the reporting year, when tne distribution is
authorized and the distributicn is no longer at the discretion of the Company on or before the end of the reporting year.

Earnings per share:

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit ¢t loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit cr loss for the period attributabie to the equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted to take into account:

.' The after income tax effect of interest and cther financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

p)

« Weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indiract method, whereby profit / (loss) for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruzls of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. Cash flows for the year are classitied by uperating, invesling and financing activities.

Segment Reporting

Operaling segments are reported in @ raanner consistent vith the iniemal reperting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as
dafined in Ind AS-108 ‘Operating Segments’ for allocating rescurces and assessing performance. The Company cperates in one reportable
business segment i.e. ' Staifing services". Further the geographic segments are not applicable since assets are oniy in India.

Recent amendments:

Ministry of Carporate Affairs ("MCA") nolifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would
hava been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Y




Innovsource Services Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

3 Property, plant and equipment

Data
Description of assets P&(;iisiz:;g FL':.?;tt::z:nd qu:::::n t Vehicles Total
{Computer)
Deemed cost (refer note 3.1)
As at April 1, 2018 161.58 121.77 176.54 70.55 §30.44
Additions 52.41 27.67 81.75 - 161.83
Disposals (3.21) (0.59) (1.37) (104.48) (109.65)
As at March 31, 2019 210.78 148.85 256.92 (33.93) 582.62
Additions 132.21 39.55 73.74 - 245.50
Disposals (23.12) (18.19) (23.99) - (65.30)
As at March 31, 2020 319.87 170.21 306.67 (33.93) 762.82
. Depreciation
As at April 1, 2018 - - - - -
Depreciation expense for the year 90.50 58.43 87.19 17.01 253.13
Eliminated on disposal of assets (3.21) (0.59) (1.07) (50.94) (55.81)
As at March 31, 2013 87.29 57.84 86.12 (33.83) 197.32
Depreciation expense fer the period 95.81 36.05 97.62 - 229.48
Eliminated on disposal of assets {20.11) (10.39) (19.27) - (49.77)
As at March 31, 2020 162.99 83.50 164.47 (33.93) 377.03
As at March 31, 2020 156.88 86.71 142.20 385.79
As at March 31, 2019 123.49 91.01 170.80 - 385.30
As at April 1, 2018 161.58 121.77 176.54 70.55 530.44

3.1 The Company has elected to use the carrying amounts {net block) measured as per the previous GAAP as deemed cost (gross
block) as at April 1,2018 (i.e. the transition date)

>
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Innovsource Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Description of assets Software Rights Right to use Trademark Total
Deemed cost (refer note 4.1)
As at April 1, 2018 217.58 376.20 593.78
Additions 7.08 - 7.08
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2019 224.64 376.20 600.84
Additions 77.15 - 77.15
Disposals (1.64) - (1.C4)
As at March 31, 2020 300.15 376.20 67¢.35 |
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2018 -
Nepreciation expense for the year 115.32 41.80 157.12
Eliminated on disposal of assels - - -
As at March 31, 2019 115.32 41.80 157.12
Depreciation expense for the period 99,21 41.80 14101
Eliminated on disposal of assets (1.34) - (1.24)
As at March 31, 2020 213.19 82.60 256.79
As at March 31, 2020 §6.96 292.60 379.56
As at March 31, 2018 109.32 334.40 443.72
. As at April 1, 2018 217.58 376.20 523.78

4 Other intangible assets

4.1 The Company has electod o use the carrying amounts {net block) measured as per the previous GAAP as deemed cost (gross block) as at
April 1,2G18 (i.e. the transition date)
4.2 Intangible assets - Goodwill (impairment)

Carrying amount of goodwill which is allocated to the only division of Staffing services as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. 7,538.40 lakhs (March

31, 2019 is Rs. 7.538.40 lakhs). This goocwill is acquired on account of business combination.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the only cash generating units (CGU)
comprising cf the Staffing cervices, which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.

The recoverable amount of a-CGU is based on its value in use. The value in use is estimated using discounted cash flows over a period of
5 years. We believe 5 years to be most appropriate time scale over which to review and consider annual performance before applying a fix
terminai value multiple to year end cash flow.

Operating margins and growth rates for the five year cash flow grojections have been estimated based on past experience and afler
considering the financial budgets/ forecasts ¢pproved by managemert. Other key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable
amount are set out below. The values assigned 1o the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the
relevent industries and have been based on historical data from both external and internal sources.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use caiculations

How determined

Budgeted EBITDA has been based on past experienne adjusted for the following:

- Revenue in the Staffing service is expected to grow on account of planned growth
plan and industry expansion in general Revenue and EBIDTA ave factored by focused
approach towards netwoik expansion, cperational efficiencies and inter group customer

. relationship synergies.

Terminal value growth rate - Long-term growth rate used for the purpose of caiculation of terminal value has been
determined by taking into account nature of business , long term inflation expectation
and long term GDP expectation for the Indian economy.

The discount rate applied ‘o tha cash flows of the Company’s opaerations is genera!lly
based on the risk free rate for ten year bonds issued by the governmentin India. These
rates are adjusted for a risk premitn to reflect the systematic risk of the Company.

Assumpticns
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate

T

Particulars

March 31, 2620

March, 31, 20

Pre tax risk adjusted discount rate
Terminal value growth rate
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate

4 52%
5.00%
10-17%

. 1452%
5.00%
10-17%

These assumptions are reviewed annually as part of management's budgeting and strategic plarning cycles. These estimates may differ
from actual results. The values assigred to each of the key assumptions reflect the Management's past experience as their assessment of
future trends, and are consistent vath external / internal sources of information.

As at 31 March 2020, the estimated receivable amount of CGU exceeds its carrying amount and accordingly, no impairment was

recognisec.

The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis calculations on the projections usecd and discount rate applied. Given the significant
headroom that exists, and the resuits of the sensitivity analysis pc-riormed,‘i“ % concluded thgt thare is no significant risk that reasonable

changes in any key assumptions would cause tha carrying value of yood

4 td cxcead its valde in use.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
Al zmounts are € in lakhs unless otharwise stated

5 Other financial assets

6.1

L

Particulars

Non- current

Deposit for premises
Less:- Provision for doubtful deposits

Unbilled revenue towards reimbursable gratuity and

compensated absences
Total
Current
Advance to Employees
- considered gond
- considered doubiful
Less:- Provision for doubtful advance

Unbilled revenue
Claim receivable on business transfer
Less:- Provision for doubtful advance

Deposits to related parties
Total

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1, 2018
346.88 ' 210.70 263.95
(141.62) (73.05) (17.32)
205.26 137.65 246.63
3,526.94 2,230.04 .
3,742.20 2,367.66 246.63
61.48 91.73 70.24
8.23 13.73 .
(8.23) (13.73) -
6148 91.73 70.24
2,985.81 5,274.22 1,279.85
- 56.35 56.35
- (56.35) -
- . 56.35
- - 100.00
3,047.29 5,365.55 | 1,506.44

Deferred tax asset (net)

Movement in deferred tax balances

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Opening balance pF:;‘:g::dsle_i;Z Recognised in OCI :;:);::g
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 1,309.73 (304.46) 211.00 1,216.27
Property, plant and equipmeht (911.23) (61.79) - (973.02)
Provision for rent escalation 18.30 (5.30) - 13.00
Provision for doubtful debts 217.52 (73.39) - 14413
Unbiiled revenue (744.50) - - (744.50)
Others 4.29 {4.29) - (0.00)
Deduction of Section 80JJAA - 251.68 | - 251.68
MAT credit entitiement 192.09 (192.00) - -
Net tax asset/{liabilities) £6.11 (389.55) . 211.06C (32.44)
Movement in deferred tax balances
For the year ended arch 31, 2019
Particulars Opening balance p?i;:g::ii:; Recognised in OCl ;:;z::g
Deferred tax (liabifities)/assets in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 364.56 890.70 54.47 1,309.73
Property, plant and equipment (342.81) (568.42) - (911.23)
Provision for rent escalation 13.88 4.42 - 18.30
Provision for doublful debts 11.75 205.77" - 217.52
Unbilled revence - (744.50) - (744.50)
Others - 429 - 429
I MAT credit entitiement - 192.00 - 192.00
| Net tax asselt/{liabilities) _47.38 (15.74) 54.47 86.11

S
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Innovsource Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are T in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

7 Trade receivables

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at April 1, 2018

Particulars 2020 2019
Unsecured, considered good 6,652.50 4,720.04 5,572.81
Unsecured, considered doubtful 445.68 508.00 24.92
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss
allowances) (445.68) (508.00) (24.92
6,652.50 4,720.04 5,572.81
Total 6,652.50 4,720.04 5,5672.81
Movement of allownace of doubtful receivables
Balance as at April 01, 2018 24.92
Allowance for doubtful debts (refer note 30) 483.08
Balance as at March 31, 2019 508.00
Bad debts w/off and provision reversed (62.32)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 445.68
. 8 Cash and cash equivalents
. As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1, 2018
Particulars 2020 2019
Balances with banks
- In current account 31.54 814.82 5,249.71
- in other deposit accounts - original maturity of three 5,355.32 4,664.95 -
Cash on hand - - 2.50
Total 5,386.86 5,479.77 5,252.21
9 Other current assets
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1, 2018
: 2020 2019
Prepaid Expenses 216.27 202.30 119.49
Security Deposit 229.97 303.38 269.15
Balances with Government authorities 17.85 2.45 32.73
Advance to Suppliers 60.67 11.13 3.98
Total 524.76 519.26 425.35




Innovsource Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are Z in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

¢

‘0.4

10 Equity share capital

10.1

10.2 Terms right attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders o

Particul As at Mérch 31, | As at March 31, As at April 1,
articulars 2020 2019 2018
Authorised share capital

11,90,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 11,900.00 11,900.00 11,900.00
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:

11,53,30,000 Equity Shares of Z 10/- each Fully Paid up 11,533.00 11,533.00 10.00
Total 14,533.00 11,533.00 10.00
Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :-

Particulars Numbers Amount

No of shares as at 01st April 2018 1,00,000 10.00

Add:- additional shares issued during the year 11,52,30,000 11,523.00

As at the end of the year 31st March 2019 11,53,30,000 11,533.00

Add:- additional shares issued during the year - -

As at the end of the year 31st March 2020 11,53,30,000 11,533.00

of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote
f equity share will be entitled to receive any of the remaining

assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

10.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at April 1, 2018

% Holding

2020 2019
Fully paid equity shares
11,53,30,000 11,52,29,999 -
Firstmeridian Business Services Private Limited (Holding Company)
% Holding 100.00% 99.99%
Innovsource Private Limited - - 99,999
- - 99.99%

The Company in the previous year 2018-19 had entered into

a business purchase agreement with its erstwhile holding company,
Innovsource Private Limited on April 9, 2018 to purchase holding company's staffing business. The said agreement was effective

from April 1, 2017. In terms of business purchase agreement, the consideration for business purchase of Rs. 11,523.00 lac were to
be satisfied by issue of fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each. Pending allottment, the value of equity shares to be
alloted were shown as share suspense account as at 01st April 2018. The equity shares have been duly alloted by the Company in
the previous financial year 2018-19 on April 10, 2018.

11 Other equity
. As at March 31 As at March 31 As at April 1
rt k] ’ ?

Particulars 2020 2019 2018
Share application money pending allotment - - 11,523.00
Retained earnings 2,200.46 984.58 136.58
Total 2,200.46 984.58 11,659.58

11.1 Retained earnings: The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined

based on the balance in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus the amounts

reported above are not distributable in entirely. It includes impact of actuarial gains and losses on the funded obligation due to
change in financial assumptions, change in demographic assumption, experience adjustments, etc. recognised through other
comprehensive income. i

W




Innovsource Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

12 Borrowings

Particul As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at April 1,
articutars 2020 2019 2018
Non-current:
Term loans from related parties (refer note no 12.1) 171.00 171.00 -
Less :- Current maturity of long term loan (171.00) - -
Total - 171.00 -
Current:
Loan repayable on demand from bank (refer note 12.2) 1,400.00 - -
1,400.00 - -
12.1 Term loan is taken form related party with interest rate at 9% per annum and repayable by 30 September 2020.
.12.2 Bank overdraft is repayable on demand which is unsecured.
13 Trade payables
R As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1,
Particulars 2020 2019 2018
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 1,078.81 287.62 109.14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(refer note 25) 0.18 2.74 496
Total 1,078.99 290.36 114.10
14 Other current financial liabilities
. As at March 31 As at March 31 As at April 1
P rt ’ ’ ’
articulars 2020 2019 2018
Current maturity of long term loan (refer note no 12.1) 171.00 - -
Employee benefits payable 9,293.69 10,410.78 7,247.91
‘ Payable for capital purchases - 9.78 18.72
Interest accrued but not due 1.28 33.16 -
Other current liabilities 533.43 190.78 388.67
Total 9,999.40 10,644.50 7,655.30
15 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at April 1,
2020 2019 2018
Statutory liabilities 4,634.40 4,466.64 3,425.48
Total 4,634.40 4,466.64 3,425.48




Innovsource Services Private Limited

Notes

forming part of the financial statements

All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

16

17

18

19

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Sale of services

Total

1,46,642.58

1,29,752.24

1,46,642.58

1,29,752.24

Other Income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

- Bank deposits (at amortised cost)

Interest on income tax refund

Dividend on mutual funds

Profit on sale of mutual fund

Miscellaneous income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income on security deposits

Total

88.14 73.99
105.32 -
- 26.74
- 11.147
28.42 2.57
7.94 1.08
15.94 15.10
245.76 130.65

Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Total

1,27,381.50 1,11,947.27
9,009.58 7,450.50
549.49 44411
3,786.16 4,214.60
1,40,726.73 1,24,056.48

Finance Costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Interest on borrowings
interest on lease liability

Total

23.40 36.85
94.04 108.53
117.44 145.38

W
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All amounts are Z in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

20 Depreciation and amortisation expense

21

211

N~ &

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 229.48 253.13
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 647.87 615.96
Amortisation of intangible assets 141.01 157.12
Total 1,018.36 1,026.21
Other expenses

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Auditor's remuneration (refer note 21.1)

Bad debts and other receivables written off
Communication expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables
Professional and consultancy fees

Recruitment and training expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Expense towards corporate social responsibility
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

31.00 20.00
33.20 120.18
251.69 291.90
199.00 195.66
328.97 519.37
- 609.35
795.37 393.14
209.44 369.56
175.42 222.71
2.26 -
766.73 788.51
2,793.08 3,630.38

Payments to auditors

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a) For audit 18.00 18.00
b) Tax audit 2.00 2.00
c) For other services 11.00 -
Total 31.00 20.00

“ K




Innovsource Services Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
22 Current tax and deferred tax

22.1 Income tax recognised in profit and loss

Particulars

Current tax:

Profit before tax

Income tax rate (incl. surcharge)

Income tax expense calculated (incl. surcharge)

Non-deductible expenses
Exempt income

80JJAA tax incentives
Adoption of new tax regime under section 115BAA on deferred tax including
reversal of MAT credit entitiement*

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss

For the year ended|For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2,232.73 1,124.44
25.17% 33.38%
561.93 375.38
- 58.39
- (8.70)
(364.38) (257.34)
192.00 -
389.55 167.73

* During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has decided to exercise the option of lower tax rate available under
Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, with effect
from FY 2020. Accordingly, the Company has written off through the statement of profit and loss, accumulated MAT credit

of ¥ 192 lacs.
22.2 Deferred Tax

The company has not recognised deferred tax with respect to its tax losses and other temporary differences as it is unable
to quantify the probability of its off-set against estimated immediate future profits. The estimated future profits are based on
estimated business plan, hence, the recognition is sensitive to the changes in the business plan.

23 Basic and diluted earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per

share are as follows:

For the year For the year
‘ Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2020 2019

Basic:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 1,843.18 956.70

Weighted average number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 11,53,30,000 1,00,000

Add: Number of equity shares issued during the year - 11,20,73,014

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year 11,53,30,000 11,21,73,014

Basic earnings per share 1.60 0.85

Diluted:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 1,843.18 956.70

Weighted average number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 11,53,30,000 1,00,000

Add: Number of equity shares issued during the year - 11,52,30,000

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year 11,53,30,000 11,53,30,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share 1.60 0.83
L
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Innovsource Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

24 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018

As at March 31, 2020

Claims not acknowledged as debts (refer note 24.1) 25.91 98.59 4.69

24.1 Claims not acknowledged as debts principally relates to cases lodged by employees against the Company. It also includes cases lodged by employees against the
earstwhile holding Company relating to staffing business, which are now a contingent liability for the Company in lieu of the purchase of staffing business from the
earstwhile Holding Company. The management believes, based on issues involved, that no material liabilities will accrue in respect of these cases and accordingly
no cash outflow is expected and the management believes that based on the nature of cases, the claims are not expected to be material.

24.2 Provident fund
On 28 February 2019, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in determining the components of
salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by establishments. The Company has been legally advised that there are various
interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice, the management believes that it is not practicable at this
stage to reliably measure the contingencies relating to amounts payable if any on potential demands relating to Provident Fund.

25 Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED Act)
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Particulars As at April 1, 2018

274 4.96

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 0.18
accounting year
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the - - -
accounting year
(iiiy The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to - - -
the supplier beyond the appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - - -
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but

without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the - - -
accounting year
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, - - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under|
section 23
The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and

hence the disclosure required under the Act.

26 Leases
26.1 Transition

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use' asset of ¥ 951.95 Lacs and a lease liability of 2 980.48 Lacs. The cumulative
effect of applying the standard of ¥ 36.02 Lacs was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating
activities and an decrease in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

26.2 The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

i. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

_ Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for lease
ii.

iii. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

26.3 The effect of depreciation and interest related to Right Of Use Asset and Lease Liability are reflected in the Profit & Loss Accoun

and amortisation expense” and “Finance costs" respectively under Note No 20 and 21.

26.4 The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2018 is 10%.

26.5 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020:

s with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

t under the heading "Depreciation

. Category of ROU

Particulars Gffice Space B irniture & Fiftings Total

Balance as of April 1, 2018 918.54 33.41 951,95
Additions 711.90 - 711.90
Depreciation (592.57) (23.39) (615.96)
Deletions (71.01) - (71.01
Balance as of March 31, 2019 966.86 10.02 976.88
Balance as of April 1, 2019 966.86 10.02 976.88
Additions 739.71 5.02 744.73
Depreciation (636.90) (10.97) (647.87)
Deletions (46.28) - {46.28
Balance as of March 31, 2020 1,023.3% 4.07 1,027.46

>




Innovsource Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

26.6 The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as of March 31, 2020:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018

Current Lease liabilities 520.92 553.61 381.31

Non-current lease liabilities 558.18 478.10 599.17

Total 1,079.10 1,031.71 980.48
26.7 The following is the movement in lease liabilities:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Balance as of April 1, 2018 980.48

Additions/Deletions 621.94

Finance cost accrued during the period 108.53

Payment of lease liabilities (679.24)

Balance as of March 31, 2019 1,031.71

Balance as of April 1, 2019 1,031.71

Additions/Deletions 675.81

Finance cost accrued during the period 94.04

Payment of lease liabilities (722.46)

Balance as of March 31, 2020 1,079.10

26.8 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease

liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2018

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

591.03 621.55 467.56
600.05 504.12 494.92
1.79 23.32 43.06
1,192.87 1,148.99 1,005.54

The Company does not face a significant fiquidity risk with regard to its lea

26.9 Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expense relating to short-term leases
Expense relating to leases of low value assets

647.87
94.04
328.97

615.96
108.53
519.37

o\

se liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Company’s treasury function.
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27

27.4

27.3

Related parties transactions

Names of the related parties and related party relationships

Particulars

Relationship

Manpower Solutions Limited

FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Innovsource Private Limited (till 27 June, 2018)

Innovsource Facilities Private Limited

V5 Global Services Private Limited (w.e.f July 5, 2018)

Affluent Global Services Private Limited (w.e.f September 17, 2018)
Innovsource Security Private Limited (till 27 June, 2018)

Key Management Personnel
Sudhakar Balakrishnan (w.e.f August 29, 2018)
Nilay Pratik
Manish Mehta (till 26th August 2019)
Shishir Gorle (till 27 June 2018)
Raja Shekhar Reddy (till 27 June 2018)
Tejas Sanghvi
Monali Joshi

Ultimate Holding company

Holding company
Holding company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Details of related party transactions

Innovsource Private Limited
Sale of services

Firstmeridian Business Services Private Limited
Sale of services

Professional and consultancy fees

Interest on term loan

Long-term borrowings received

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Repairs & Maintainance

IT Development and Management charges

Cost for ESOP

Innovsource Facilities Private Limited

Cost of Facility management service

Staff welfare expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Business Support Service

Transfer out of employee benefit liability on transfer of employees

Innovsource Security Private Limited
Security services received

V5 Global Services Private Limited
Rent

Remuneration to key managerial persons

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

624.66
15.39
1,290.00
1,290.00
8.00
63.70
3.94

2215
10.57
7.87
141.92
15.68

69.02

19.25

10.01
172.45
36.85
1,100.00
929.00

2.93
2.66
148.37

2.60

0.90

101.02

Details of related party closing balances

Firstmeridian Business Services Private Limited

Trade receivable

Trade payable

Long-term borrowings

Interest accrued but not due

Reimbursement of acquisition cost (as a part of purchase consideration)

Innovsource Facilities Private Limited
Trade receivable
Trade payable

V5 Global Services Private Limited
Trade payable

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

175.60
171.00
1.28

37.44
18.56

10.44
68.98
171.00
33.16
429.00

43.18
0.29

1.06

o
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28 Segment information

2!

k ended March 31, 2019.

L

The Board of Directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by IND-AS 108, Operating Segment. CODM
evaluates the performance of Company and allocated resources based on the analysis of various performance indicators of the Company. The CODM has
identify “Staffing and allied Service” as operating segment. All the activities of the Company are revolving around Staffing and allied Services including
facility management.

Employee benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s contribution to Provident fund and other funds aggregating during the period ended march 31, 2020 is  9,009.58 Lakhs (and during the year
ended 31 March 2019: Z 7,450.50 Lakhs) has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss under the head employee benefits expense.

i) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme for core employees is administered through a trust with the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The funding requirements
are based on the gratuity funds actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding is based on a separate actuarial
valuation for funding purpose for which assumptions are same as set out below. Employees do not contribute to the plan. The Company has determined
that, in accordance with the terms and conditions of gratuity plan, and in accordance with statutory requirements (including minimum funding requirements)
of the plan, the present value of refund or reduction in future contributions is not lower than the balance of the total fair value of the plan assets less the total
present value of obligations.

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

(1) Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

(2) Interest rate risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate
generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

(3). Investment Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a
relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

(4) Mortality risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars Valuation as at
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

(i). Financial assumptions

Discount rate (p.a.) 5.65%- 6.37% 6.76%-7.48%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 4.74% 2.98%

Rate of employee turnover (p.a.) Below 5years 47% and 5 | Below Syears 46% and §
years and above 5% years and above 7%

{if). Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 IALM 2006-08

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Current service cost 467.25 233.35
Net interest expense 82.24 105.41
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 549.49 338.76

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability

Actuarial (gains)loss arising form changes in financial assumptions 647.31 (508.55)
Actuarial {(gains)/loss arising form changes in demographic assumptions (132.39) 492.48
Actuarial {gains)/oss arising form experience adjustments 323.11 178.83
Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense) 0.27 0.42
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive 838.30 163.18
income
Total 1,387.79 501.94
Notes:

i) The Current service cost and the net interest expense for the period are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line item in the statement of profit and
loss.

ii) The remeasurement of the net define benefits liability is included in other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2020 and for the year

&
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as

follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2018

Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Unfunded status -Surplus/ (Deficit)

2,364.68 1,542.12
31.18 55.97
2,333.50 1,486.16

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Opening of defined benefit obligation 1,542.12 1,675.10
Current service cost 467.24 233.35
Interest on defined benefit obligation 85.40 111.06
Remeasurements due to:

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 647.31 (508.55)

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions (132.39) 492.48

Actuarial loss / {gain) arising on account of experience changes 323.11 178.83
Benefits paid (568.11) (640.15)
Closing of defined benefit obligation 2,364.68 1,542.12

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars
Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer contribution
Interest on plan assets
Return on Plan Assets , Excluding Interest Income
Benefits paid
Assets distributed on settlement
Closing of defined benefit obligation

5597 85.20
0.07 0.07
3.15 5.65

(0.27) (0.42)

(27.73) (34.53)

3149 55.97

Major category of plan assets (as a percentage of total plan assets)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Trust Managed/Insurer Managed Funds
Total

100%

100%

100%

100%

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

The following table summarizes the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase or

decrease in the reported assumption by 1%.

Principal assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a) Discount rate
Increase by 1% (11.32) (113.37)
Decrease by 1% 13.63 131.48
. b) Salary Escalation Rate
Increase by 1% 13.72 135.34
Decrease by 1% (11.58) (118.33)
¢) Employee Turnover Rate
Increase by 25% (LY 1%) - 27.06
Decrease by 25% (LY 1%) - (33.36)

Notes:

i) The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

ii). Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the presen
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same

the balance sheet.

t value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in

iii There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Within 1 Year 127.41 134.74
2-5 years 540.26 535.47
6-10 years 774.90 641.30
11 years and above 4,006.05 1,772.53

Q
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30 Financial instruments
30.1 Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrum

ents by categories are as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020
Fir ial assets ed at amortised cost
Non-Current
Other financial assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-Current

Borrowing

Lease liabilities
Current

Borrowing

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2019
Fir ial t: ed at amortised cost
Non-Current
Other financial assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-Current

Borrowing

Lease liabilities
Current

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

As at April 1, 2018
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Non-Current
Other financial assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-Current

Borrowing

Lease liabilities
Current

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total carrying value

3,742.20

5,386.86
6,652.50
3,047.29

558.18

1,400.00

520.92
1,078.99
9,999.40

2,367.69

5479.77
4,720.04
5,365.95

171.00
478.10

553.61
290.36
10,644.50

246.63

5,252.21
5,572.81
1,506.44

599.17

381.31
114.10
7.655.30

30.2 Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as

going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders

through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt offset by cash and

bank balances and total equity of the Company.

(D/,
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30 Financial instruments (Cont.)

30.3 Financial risk management objectives

The company monitors and manages the financial risks to the operations of the company. These risks include market

risk, credit risk, interest risk and liquidity risk.

A. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obiigations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company uses its own tra
customers. The Company's exposure to financial loss from defaults are continuousty monitored.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across vario

evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liguidity Risk Management implies

. maintenance of sufficient cash to meet obligations when due.

The Company continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of

financial assets and liabilities.

Maturities of financial liabilities

Table showing maturity profile of non-derivative financial liabilities:

ding records to rate its major

us geographical areas. Ongoing credit

Upto One year 1-5 years Total
March 31, 2020
Borrowing (excluding lease liabilities) 1,400.00 1,400.00
Trade payables 1,078.99 - 1,078.99
Other financial liabilities 9,999.40 - 9,999.40
March 31, 2019
Borrowing (excluding lease liabilities) 171.00 171.00
Trade Payables 290.36 - 290.36
Other financial liabilities 10,644.50 - 10,644.50
April 1, 2018
Borrowing (excluding lease liabilities) - -
Trade Payables 114.10 - 114.10
Other financial liabilities 7,655.30 - 7,655.30

The above table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods.
The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest

. date on which the Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is

required to pay.

C. Market risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumen
comprises of currency risk and interest rate risk. In the normal course of business an

through a variety of strategies.

i). Currency risk

based on the earliest date on which the Company may be

t will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
d in accordance with our policies, we manage these risks

The rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The

Company is domiciled in India and has its revenues and other major transa

is not exposed to any currency risk.

ii). Interest rate risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl
The Company does not have any borrowed funds and so the Company is no

30.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measu

\

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measure

red at amortised cost:
d at amortised cost approximate their fair values.

ctions in its functional currency i.e. INR. Accordingly the Company

uctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
t exposed to any interest rate risk.
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31 First-time adoption of Ind-AS

311 First time Ind AS adoption reconciliations
(i) Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2019:

Note: Under previous GAAP, total comprehensive income was not reported. Therefore, the above

reconciliation starts with profit under the previous GAAP.

31.2 Notes to reconciliation

_ On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use’ asset of ¥ 951,95 Lacs and

a lease liability of ¥ 980.48 Lacs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard of % 36.02 Lacs was debited to
retained earnings, net of taxes. ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from
an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

b. The provision is made against trade receivables

operating activities and

pased on “expected credit loss” model as per ind AS 109. Under

[-GAAP the provision was made when the receivable turned doubtful pased on the assessment on case to case

basis.

“

. As at March 31, As at April 01,
Particulars Notes 2019 2018
Total equity as per previous GAAP 487.67 11,702.26
Ind AS adjustments:
Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 a. (92.60) (49.91)
Provision for doubtful debts b. (9.23) (9.22)
Fair Valuation of Security Deposits d. 15.10 -
Reversal of Goodwill amortization e. 837.60 -
Deferred tax on Ind AS adjustments f. (253.96) 16.45
Total adjustments 496.91 (42.68
Total equity 984.58 11,659.58
(ii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2019:

Notes| For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019
Profit as per previous GAAP 308.41
Ind AS Adjustments:
Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 a. (42.70)
Fair Valuation of Security Deposits d. 15.10
Reclassification of Actuarial Gain/(Loss) C. 163.17
Reversal of Goodwill amortization e. 837.60
Deferred tax on Ind AS adjustment f. (324.89)
Total effect of transition to Ind AS 648.28
Profit under Ind AS 956.69
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) f. (108.70)
Total Comprehensive Income 847.99
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¢. Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company has recognised costs related to its post—employment defined
penefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, aré
charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements (comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised
immediately in the palance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL.

d. Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits (refundable) given which are carried at nominal value. Ind

AS requires to measure these assets at fair value at inception and subsequently these assets are measured at

amortized cost. At inception date, Company recognises difference petween deposit fair value and nominal value
as Right to use asset and same is being recognised as depreciation expense on straight line basis over the lease
period. Further, Company recognises notional interest incmoe on these deposit over the lease term.

e. Under previous GAAP, Goodwill was amortised based on estimated useful life. Under Ind AS Goodwill having
indefi nite useful life is tested for impairment on transition date as well as subsequent palance sheet date and no
amortization is done as it has indefinite useful life.

f. Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes are recognised for the tax effect of timing differences petween accounting
. profit and taxable profit for the year using the income statement approach. Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are
recognised using the palance sheet for future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying

value of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

The various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences such as recognition of deferred tax impact on
provision for doubtful debts as per ECL model. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

32 The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to coviD-19 onthe

carrying amounts of receivables and other assets. In assessing the recoverability of the assets, the company has

considered internal and external sources of information, available as at the date of approval of these financial
results, including subsequent recoveries, credit risk profiles, etc. Based on the above assessment, the company is
of the view that the carrying amounts of the assets will be realized. The impact of COVID-19 on the company's
financial results may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements, and
the company will continue to closely monitor the developments.
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